
UNITED NATIONS 

ECONOMIC 
AND 
SOCIAL CO~jf 

9 OCT 1950 
l ~ ~--~- ----~: 
' . _ __,____ ---·· ··- ,._......., . ' ... 

GENERAL 

E/AC . 2J./SR.66 
4 August 19 50 

--·------ -

- --· ----- -

CltiGINAL: ENGLISH 

Dual Distribution 

CONTENTS. 

ECONrn:UC AND SOCIAL COUNCIL 

Eleventh Session 

CO-ORDD~ATION COMMITTEE 

SUl1MARY RECORD OF THE SIXTY-SIXTH MEETING 

Held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva, 
on Friday, 21 July 1950, at 10.30 a .m. 

Report of the United Nations Educational, 
Scientif~ and Cultural Organization 
(item 37 of the agenda) (E/1688, E/1688/Add. l, 
E/ AC. 2.4/L .10, E/ AC . 24/1.13 and E/ AC . 24/1.15) 



-.-;. 0 ') t /'-'R 66 .tr '"' ~ ~, '-'• • 

po.ge 2 

J..:.1s t r-alia 

Belgium 

Brazil 

C<mada 

Chi.le 

Chin~ 

Den11".ark 

France 

India 

!rp.n 

Mexico 

Pakistan 

Peru 

Chairman: 

United Kingdom of Gr eat Britain 
and Northern I r eland 

i.iu.li..~::u Sf.ates o t· J.rnerica 

Also present : 

Mr . HerMn SJiNTA CRUZ 

~eprese.ntatives of specializad agencies: 

International Labour Organisation 

Food and Agr icul ture Organization . 

United Nations Educational, Scie~ti!ie 
and Cultural Organization 

Mr. NORn::GA (Hexico ) 

Mr. WAI.!Qlt 

Hr, DELHAYE 

Hr , HURTnmo 

Mr . Dt..VIDSOO 

Mr. SC HNIJ<E- VERGARA 

Mr. YU 
Mr. TSII.O 

Mr. BCRIERG 

Mr. BCIUS 
Mr . KAYSER 

Sir Ramaawami MUDALIAR 

Mr. ENTEZAM 

Mr . de ALBA 

Mr . AKHTAR 

Mr . CABADA 

Mr . CCRLEY SMITH 

Mr. KOTSCHNIG 

Pr esident of the Council 

Mr. ALVARADO 
Mr. cox 
Mr. OLSEN 

I>fr. TamES BODET 
Mr . de BIDIAY 
Mr. BERKElEY 
Mr. TERENZI O 



E/AC. 24/SR. 66 
page .3 . 

Representatives of spycial ized agencies (continued): 

International Ci vil Aviation 
Org.:mization 

Int ernational Tulecotrununicat ion 
Union 

Mr. MAR.LLN 

Mr . MULA TIER 

Repr~s8ntatives of non-governmental organizations : 

Category A: 

Internutional Confederation of 
Free Trade Unions 

International Federation of 
Christian Trade Unions 

world Feder ation o:t' United 
Nations hssoci ations 

Category B and Register: 

Commission of th~ Churches 
on International Affairs 

Consultative Council of 
Jewish Organizations 

International C~tholio Union 
of Social Service 

International Co-operative 
Women's Guild 

International Council of 
\'lomen . 
International Union of Catholic 
\'lomEn r s Leagues 

International Union for Child 
Welfare 

Liaison Cotmnittee of tlomen 's 
Int ernational Organisations 

vi amen's Internati onal Luague 
f or Peace and Freedom 

World Jewish Congress 

~lorld 1 s Young \Jomen ' s Christian 
Association 

Miss SENDEil 

Mr. van dor PLUil.f 

Mr. EVANS 

Mr . MOURAVlliFF 

Mr. ~JEILL 

Miss de ROllliR 

Miss ROSS.m:t 

Mrs . DREY'r1JS-B.ARNEY 

Miss de ROMER 

Miss DINGMAN 
Miss FRANKF.NSTEIN 

Mrs. DREYFUS-BA..'1NEY 

Mrs. BAER 

Mr . ·RIEGNER 

Mrs. BERESFORD FOX. 



E/AC. 24/SR. 66 
pagG 4 · 

~ecretariat 

Mr . Laugier 

Nr. Martin Hill 

Nr . Urquhart 

Assistant Secr etar,y-General 
in charge of the Department 
of Social Affairs 

Director of co-ordination for 
specialized agencies and 
economic and social matters 

Secretary to the Committee 



E/AC ,24/SR.66 
page 5 

REPORT OF THE UN ITED Ni\TIONS EDUC ATIONfiL, SCIENTIFIC AND CULTURAL ORGANIZATIGN 
(it em 37 of th.; agenda) (E/1688, E/1688/J\dd , l, ~/AC.24/L.lO, E/J\C.24/L.l3 and 
E/i\C . 24/1 .15) 

The CHklR}L~ r ecalled t hat t he first i t em on the agenda f0r the day 

was consider ation of tho r uport of t he United Nat ions FAucation~l, Scientific 

and Cultural Organiz:3.tion (UNESCO) (E/1688 and E/1688/Add.l) . It wa s his 

pz:ivilegc, not only .as Chairman, but also as a r~:~prdst::ntativt: of Nexico, to 

welcome }~. Torres Bodet, Director-Gener al of UNESCO. The Director-General was 

a. compatriot distinguished not only in his own country, but throughout the 

world, where hi s name was great ly honoured. 

On behalf of the Committee , he al so extended a welcome to Mr. Hernan Santa 

Cruz, President of the Councilo 

He believed UNESCO 1 s r eport was at the moment of the greatest importance, 

in that it covered new phas~s of devel opment in the Organization's work directed 

towards promoting the gen~r~ welfare of mankind and the advancement of human 

dignity. 

Mr, · T<::RRES BODET (Director-General of the United Nations Educational, 

Scientific and Cultural Organization), recalling that 'W·hon he had first 

reported to the Council on UNESC0 1s ·activities in July 1949 he had been in 

office f or only six months, said that the report(E/1688) he was presenting to 

the Council reprosented the balance sheet of a full year's work. That work 

had be t.n marked by a heightened rhythm of activity, despite the extra burden 

imposed on the Organization by the necessity of holding three sessions of ita 

Goneral Conference betweon November 1948 and !'JAy 1950, in r esponse to the wish 

expressed by the United N~tions in 1948 that thteConfercnce should h~ncetorward 

bo held in the spring, 

Chapter II, on the execution of UNESCO's 1949 programme, formod the larger 

part of the report. That progranD!l), which had beon adopted in 1948 and but 

slightly modified by the Fourth Gener~ Conference in 1949, primarily reflected 

UNESCO's desire f ully to explore in its early years the whole of the province en• 

trusted to it1 It was therefore distinguished by a great variety or project&. 



E/AC,2J./SR.66 
PS8B 6 

However, . the wish to aacurc the beet return from UNESCO's limited resour ces 

had l ed him, with the Executive Boardts approval, to introduce a scale of 

priorities !or the execution of UNESCO's tasks; even that was purely' a rule

af-thwub arrangement. The drafting or a new progrBJnine f or 1951 ha4 afforded t he 

Executive Board with an opportunity of concentrating and rationalizing the 

programzoo by re-arranging t he item&! by the ends pursued, instead of by 

subjocte or by the t echnique employed. 

Th~ new cla•sification, which had been approved by the Fifth General Confer

enco held in May 1950 in Flor ence, differed from the old mainly in the f ormulation 

of ends pursued in the shape of the following three maj~r objects, which he would 

mention in ascunding order of complexity and importance . First, tho organizat i on 

of co-operation bctwo~ specialists f or the collation and ·diseeminat i on of know

ledge and r esearch. Secondly, the promotion of the utilization of such knowledge 

and ·research with the object of improving living standards and eru!ancing human 

dignity. And, thirdly, the enlistment of all f orma of intellectur-.''~ . activit y f or 

etrengthening international understanding. 

UNESCO had made notable progress in respect of t he first point, As was 

shown in Chapter IV, the net~rk of international organizations, both govern

mental and non~governmental, associated with UNESCO's activities was becoming 

increasinglY close-knot. UNESCO had not o~ co- operated with existing 

organizations; it had also promot ed the f oundation of new bodies, where 

necessar.r, or of Councils linking up a number of organizntions concerned with 

related or complementar.r subjects, In that respect the year 1949 had been 

ver.r fruitful. But over and above the activities o! those organizations, · 

UNl!:SCO had increased its own efforte to effect exchanges of infonnation. It 

had assembled documentation on certain subjects f or the firat time; for 

.~le, on fellowships and other available facilities !or study abroad, and 

on the technical resources of the press, the cinema nnd t he radio. It had 

pushed ahead with the organization of bibliogr aphical services, set up liaison 

services such as the Field Science Co-operation Offices, and pr omot ed research 

into t echnical 'questions such o.s the Wlific:l.tion of the Braille sys: om. 



E/AC.24/ SR.66 
page 7 

However, UNESCO considered intcll~ctual co-operation and the exchange of 

infc.rmation among specialists, not as ends, but as means t o ends. They w":re 

the permanont services which must be secured in ordclr t o make it possible t o 

mobilize intellectual f orces internationally, at the right moment and with cl~ar 

objectives, t o do practical work f er peace and social progress. The paucity 

of UNESCO's financial resources and the ·comploxity of the problems had hitherto 

prevented the Organization from embarking on any f ar-reaching J.ctivities cf t hat 

kinu. It had been unable to advance beyond the stage of research andCkmonst r a

tion; however, its demonstrations had progressed far enough to make apparent 

the value of wide application cf those l essons. For ex3mple, in 1949 UNESCO 

had launched a scheme of missions of educational experts; and the scheme was 

t o be extended t o new fields during 1950. UNESCO's pilot proj ects in funda

mental education had led it t o decide t o set up a production and training 

centre f or specialised material and staff; and at its semina1·s suitable t echniqu0s 

were being dGvisod, through the pooling of experience, f or specific problems 

such as those of 'illiteracy' and adult education in rural communities. UNESCO 

had convened conferences of experts, and carried out investigations to assess 

the stat e of knowledge or news about topical questions, CMupaigns to draw public 

att E.nti on to important sch.~tific questions such as the pros~rvation of natural 

resources, and appeals t o mobilize the spirit of h~~an f ellowship for the relief 

of those afflicted by war or natural calamities . 

Tho ~xperience thus gainod had enabled UNESCO t o make a contribution to the 

plan of t~chnical assistance for economic devel opment described in Chapter V of 

the r eport. ~lith the unanimous approval of the General Confer ence, UNESCO was 

preparing t o play its part in carrying out that pbn; it was eonvinced that 

· social improvements within its province were essential to any thorough and 

enduring economic development. 

UNESCO never forgot its r esponsibility for promoting international under 

standing, which wa s its most difficult t ask. Any major undertaking in t hat 

field r equired considerable progress in the other two fields he had mentionbd, 

UNESCO's work for t he pro~otion of international understanding wa~ of necessity 

pioneer work; consequently, its activities in that field had t o date consisted 



E/AC.24/SR.66 
page 8 

principall1 of studies and ~search, tor example, into mdthode ot 
improving school textbooks, 1n:to adult education, into the ca~ee of 

collective tensions and the Lleane of raducing them, end into modem to~ 

or interna~onal co-operation. 

UNESCO had, however, taken further i.Jnzrediate .action through teaching and 

the disseminati on of information. For cxamplo, at the request of the United 

Nations, it had taken action, which would be accel arated in the near futUre, 

to promote t eaching about the United Nations and the disson4nation ot the 

Universal Declarati on of Hwnan Rights. To combat race pr ejudices, it had 

launched d t hird campaign bas~d on a statement which distinguished 

geneticists and anthropoligiste had helped to prepare, and which was bringing 

the general public th9 l atest scientific knowledge on the question. 

The significant decisions taken at the Fifth Generai Conference eet 

the salient features of tho Organiznti0n's activities in 1949 in thoir 

true perspective, and indicated the extent t o which the Organization hnd 

grown. 

Not only' had the coming year I IS programme am budget been dl-altll up at the 

l ast General Conference, but for the first time a basic programme and metboclolog 

ius.U. ""tm tsei.aoii.sned. 'l'ne oaaic programme tormea a master planJ each ann\1Al 

prograume would mark one stage bt ite execution. 'lbat plan r.wie tor 1tabillt.,y, 

and added oohorence to tho Organisation'• aims and purpo&de. Concentration· 

end execution would thereby be f acilitated. Tho critical evaluat.ion inherent 

in the drawing up ot a methodological achem.o aleo bore Wit.neee to ·the progre1e 

achieved by UNESCO 

The pre-requiaito conditions f or the succeaeful pursuit of aotbitiee had. . 

been etudiod r ea.listicall.y. The increase in UNESCO'e momberehip, which bad 

riaen by 15 between l January 1949 and l Januar;v 1950 waa more than a 

mere material reinforcement; it was a valuablo etimulua. It wu indiepenlible 



E/ AC, '24/SR, 66 
page 9 

t~ UNESCO's functioning that the greatest possibl~ varietf of points of ~e~ 

~ represented within it. Intellectual life waa built on exchanges and 

(~Ol1iperi sons , ani peace could only be achieved through understanding and 

re~pect f or diversi ty of opinion and aspir~tion, and not through the 

doctrinaire uniformity which so swiftly begot intol erance. Universality 

was th~ fundamental premiso of UNESCO's work, whi ch was imperilled by empty 

places in the conferenc~ hall. Hence, ~v~ry new acce ssion was not solely of 

theor etical signifioMt 1 but guaranteed l\ll improvomcnt in the quality of the 

Organization's work. 

But t o be profitable, the accession of new membors must. be followed by 

th~ir effective participation in the collect~ve effort. Specialized 

agencies were only t oo frequently considered as mere international admini

strative ~tructurca. \..Jhilc in the erly period of UNESCO's existt~nce it had 

been essential that the Secretariat play an important r ol e ns t he Org?n i za

tion gained in stability, the significance and r eali t y of the whol e enterpri se 

must depend on the interest and activity of Member States. Th~ General 

Conforenco hnd claarly appreciat ed that point, Md a serious effort had been 

roade t o correct ·the disproportion bctweun the r espective r esponsibilities 

of Mt:mbt~r States iUld the Secretariat. To the progranune, which i n the past 

had consisted mainly of instructions t o the Director-General, had been 

added reco:nr:lElnda.tions t o l-1Gmb~r States for specific action which would 

either be introductory or complemcnt.:u-y t o the work of the Secretariat. 

The G<lneral Confcroncc had also decided to devot e more attentiun to the 

annual reports from Member States, and had adopt ed measures which would 

undoubttldly give the l atter a clearer sense o! thei r respunsibilities in 

t he execution of th.:J pr(,grllLlllle. 

One method whereby those responsibilities could be ful ly discharged was 

that of strengthening the National Commissions, which were the appropriate 



E/AC,24/SR. 66 
page 10 

organs for enlisting the spontaneous intellectual forces of all nations. I t was 

therefore on them that UNESCO's future reallY depended. Although there were 

at the present time 47 such Commissions , as compared with 32 on 1 January 1949, 

many of them lacked the authority or the means to undertake effective action. 

That problem had been examined by the General Conference, which had adopted the 

recommendation of the representatives of National Commissions assembled at 

Florence urging governments to take certain practical steps to enable the . 
Commissions to play a more active part in UNESCO's work. 

Finally, t he General Conference had agreed that the time was now ripe to 

develop inter- governmental action through the medium of recommendations or 

conventions, As a r esult of t wo years research and negotiation carried out in 

c lose co-operation with the Interim Commission for the. International Trade 

O..:·ganization, the Confer ence had adopted a draft agreement on the free impor

tation of educati onal, scientific and cultural material. Furthermore, i t had 

drawn up the general outline of a universal copyright convention, and had 

decided to cpnsider the pr eparation of a draft convention relating to the protection 

. of monum~nts and other objects of cultural .importance, and another on financial 

assistance for the preservation of monuments. 

Since the Economic and Social Council was now engaged in framin~ an 

Intc:;rnativnal Covenant of Human ;:ights, t hat new policy was particularly 

deserving of attention. Indeed, the General Conference had speciallY studied 

the probl em of making econoinic and social rights legally binding, and had 

instructed him to put before the Council the conclusions which had been arrived 

at as a r esult of investigations carried out by the Secretariat on the imple

~ntation of the r ight to education, of the right to take part in the cultural. 

life of the community, and of the right to the protection of intellectual 

property. 
I 

Whatever progress, howover, was achi'ved in the Organization's ideas about 

co-operation by Member States, w howtJver much the natiemal and intemational· 

machinery tor it was improved, its et!'ectivenese clear~ depended above all on 

the resources made available to it. So tar those resources had undeniably 



E/AC .24/SR. 66 
page 11 

remained quite incanrnensuratc with the responsibilities entailed by the Consti

tution. The heavy financial drain on Member States as a result of the present 

trend of events was not under-estimated, and it was understood why during ~uSCO•s 

early formative period a modest budget had been deemed appropriate . Lat ely,however, 

the Organization had been shown capable of carrying out important tasks , and a 

definite policy had been adoptedo The moment seemed to hav'e come for UNESCO to 

conform to its founders' intentions and embark on far-reaching t:n~arpri scs .Likely 

to have a real influence on the state of the worl d. 

From 7,683,000 dollars in 1948, UNESCO's budget had risen t o 7 , 78(J , v00 

dol lars in 1949 and to a,ooo,ooo in 1950; for 1951 it was to be 8, 200,000 

dollars. The increases wsre v~ry smell in view of the r i se in the number of 

Memb~r States, and were barely adequate to cover the automatic in::rcu.sc in the 

irreducible overheads. Frankly, r esources on that scale p_err:li tted the provision 

of no more than a minimum of services, and precluded the prosecution of the bold 

under.takings which the people s of tho world were entitled to expect from the 

concerted effort of ?9 Stateso In order to take the decisive step from the 

stage of symbolic gestures, studies and pilot projects to that of major achieve

ment, a substantial increase was essential. 

It was true that the scheme of technical assistance for economic development 

w~ld supply UNESCO both with' new resources and with a wider field for its 

activities, but the gain would be no more than t emporary, because every expansion in 

the radius of technical assistance would r eveal more cluarly the vastness of 

the world 1s needs in education and science~ The sa.tisf?ction of those needs 

on a scale and at a pace corresponding to that of the economic development that 

w~ld have been set in motion by UNESCO would be impossible from tho domestie 

financial and technical r~sourcos of t he countries in question. Direct inter

national aid would prove necessary to avoid a world-wide unbalance more formidable 

even than that which at present existed. For the peoples would have become 

more keenly aware o1' the inequalities they suff~::r11d un:iero That was when the 

inadequacy of UNESCO's r esources would appear in it e full gravity. vias th~ 

Organization to l et i tsalf be taken by surprise? "t/as it going to cheat the 

hopee of human.emancipation, which it itself had awakened, or evade the duties 



E/AC.24/SR.66 
page 12 

of international solidarity which wer e t he r easons for its existence? The 

start of large-scal e technical ass i stance should be the signal for considering, 

and at once taking steps to secure a substantial increase in the means of direct 

action within the ordinary programr.e and budget. 

For all the above reasons stabilization of the budget at its present level 

would be fatal t o UNESCO . The Fifth General Conference had shown its understanding 

of that fact ~y a dopting a general re~olution asking Member ~tates to consider 

the possibility of augmenting t he Organizat ion's resources in 1951 by financing 

special projects on the basis of voluntary subscript i ons, whether governmental 

or private , outside the ordinary budget. That procedure would ba employed in 

the current year to secure the funds r equired for intensified activitF in 

Germany, while other projects were under consideration for submission to the 

next sessi on of the General Conference. 

That method of financing was~ however, really a temporary expedient to 

overcome t he current obstacles to any considerable increase in the ordinary 

budget, and w~s perhaps a little dangerous, a·s it tended to disturb the balance 

between the contributions of Member States and with it that corporate spirit 

which it was so important to maintain. Accordingly, the General Conference 

had recommended t hat voluntary subscriptions f er such special projects be 

fu:rni RhP.n ':>~ +:~~ ~·.'i:.e:::t ;~:::::;:!.~lQ ~-.tci:uc~. l..i.uuti:i.. i:losis 1 na l'llld bapJ)Uy beee1 the 

case with the scheme of technical assistance. In any event, th~t' abnormal 

method of financing was, in the immediate circumstances, the onl ;r way towoid 

stagnation and impotence. 

The questi on which had set the t one f . .,r the whole of the proceedings in 

Florence had been that of UNE~C0 1 s contribution to the United Nations' work for 

peace. The General Conferenc& had unanimously considered that that was 

UNESCO's essential function. It had also felt that UNESCO's contribution 

Should not take the for.m of more or less spectacular enterprises independent of 

the programme, for those might cause confusion and deflect the Organization from 

its proper and important tasks, The opinion had rather been thlt the obligation 

could be fully met by effective execution of the programme • 
• 



E/AC.24/SH..66 
page 1.3 

It was true that the programne, by UNESCO's very t e rms of r ef er ence 1 was 

concerned wit h non-political problems, but it was no l ess certain that, dir ectly 

or indirectly, those problm~s had political r epercussions , r elating as they did 

to ·the very social and spiritual f abric of civilization. Only it must be 

realfzed that, ·in the complex action of the inter.Lectual on the political, 

there was little prospect of any illmediat e effect on tfie w~rld 1 s fate . The 

deeper th~action went, the l onger its c££~~t~ would tak~ to b~ f&lt . Courag~ 

would be ·needed to recogn~ze t he ! act, and patience to accept it . 

Courage and patience had never been harder of attainment than in the 

anxious days through which all were li'-?-ng, when peaco was being so urgently 

menaced, Yet for that·very reason both had never been more necessary. At a 

time when the political problems of peaae had reached their most acute stage , and 

when the balanc~ of physical po .... er wa~ becoming an increasingly important . 
. .. 

element in deciding th(Gl, the aseertion of th& primacy of t he soci al, and in 

particular or the epiritual factor -the postulate on which all UNESCO's work 

was based - was a precept of the highest value. Such· an affirmation of faith 

in human progress was an affirmation of confidence in peace; and that in iteelt 

ma.d~ for peace, 

It was regrettable that' the fact of the material inter-dependence of Sta tes 

had won acceptance ~rc swiftly than had that of the intellectual and moral 

solidarity of peoples, Nevertheless, international co- operati on required above 

all . an international · spirit, aa had · been fully appr eciated by the authors of the 

San Francisco Charter ldlo, .tnld.ng up the work or the r..ague of Nations, had 
' . 

recognized the impOrtance of undertakings such as the Intemntional Labour . 

Organisation, and had provided for a eeriee of specialised agencies whoee · 

exchsive purpose was. to awaken and develop the international spirit by givfn& 

to th~ world inte.r-depende~t ae it. was, the will to unity both as a rock to buUc1 

on and as· the objective, the attainment of which should crown its labours. 
. . 

Those agencies were the princip!ll ~o~tion in the l.!riited Nations system. 

Amid the difficulties of the hour the great promises which had accompanied their . 

birth nnd the constructive possibilities inherent in them must not be f orgotten. 

()1 than largely depended ~e establishment of that twenti6tb-ceiltury human order 

which had still to be built, and even to be conceived.. 



·:~l . : ... 21(./ ~;·. ~ t· 66 
. · ' ~l. l • },.) ... 

; • ~·.::?. ~' o''· r,:nl that. the United Nations and their specialized agencies should 

. ..- m,_, ·~;. ;.i 't.·' , c. thou.sand obstacles in action. The unc~nsing sacrifices which 

;\ .:::. ; ,~cd i ' •. ,;·· <U di.d not al ways or easily awa.kcn enthuaiaem. The need had 

..•. ~ •• ,. : .. :,) ;;'if"' ;,;,,;:-.tng th.:: politic:-1 s ecurity. machinery of the United Nu.tione, 

,. : . ,. .. ,. ,;,,,,..;·o.>:s g.t'u'lt <:<'! ~)ueh t o enable the specialized agencies to carry out 

:· .·,.:.: ~'., .:. ·,.~) .rk, w.H'k which might not lose sight of practical r ev.lity. All 

~"(.~\ {~~~ .. ·Jllf, ~11•.n 0 i' g.~1 ;: ~Hi' 'l he knew that there were many who wondered whether 

;.1,' ·. : ~::; . , ·n· ~,du,; · :,, ' ,.·, ; fort£>;,:, ignorant, care for the sick and food for the 

·-:;· w .:: • ' ,·,: < t;y S1?-l:'' l/~ t o stave off war. Yet one truth that must be ever 

·~ ... rt .i.n !n:w'~ -r.,\ t that t here wC~s no real pe.:1ce without economic justice and social 

~;·,:gr. s~ . To extend the political responsibilities of the United Nations wtthout 

ir:c1·,; ,1 <:J.:i.ng t o ~. cocre spond:ing or even greater degree the economic and social 

·:·(· t~'·" ~ t.J e ~ -:;f the specialized a gencies would be to throw the whole system out of 

l;,1:;.: -: .:;. ... , a ::d r t;pudiat e the principles on which it Wll.S bused. In existing circum

~' ' .. ".J : ·:,~ ~~ > i t would mean yielding under the guise of realism to the most disastrous 

!it:;~ (,. ~ t, J sa·,. ::.{o~rc th~n E:V(:r, it wets t.:.::;sentia.l tha t ir&ternational co-operation 

::rJ!j<J.l•j 'lChievc acceptance by the s cope and effectiveness of what it did, and that 

tb.; sp .. :i .:-,lized agencies s -:;t up to that end .should show the people, no longer 

llt .:: r·t. . .'.. / by f)~v1nbol.l.c i llustr'ations or exhort.::.tions, but ~y practical achievements, 

,.ll t. ~. ,~. dignity a;:Hi. happiness that pence brought with it, 

Pc.:.c <:: had been d.efined as unending creation. It as in hours of difficulty 

t h::t H wc~s most important t o remember that . It was then, above a ll1 tha t 

hU:7J.mity must be mnde to understand that agencies such a.s tho International Labour 

0:rg :.:miz.~tion 1 the Horld Healt h Organization, the Food ::tnd Agriculture Organization 

~ld the United Na tions Education81 1 Scientific and Cultural Organization had not 

been created to knock together a jerry-built world of tomorrow during an uneasy 

truce, but to pave th~ way, despite tensions, or even wars, for·the driwn of the 

economic and social justice without which, as he hnd said, thero wae no true 

peace. 

On behalf of the Committee, the CHAIRMAN thanked the Director-General for 

his clear ~nd comprehensive statement. 



lf/AC~24/SRe66 
page 15 

Mr. BORIS (France) sa i d he wished at t he outset t o oxpress the 

French delegation r a deep appreciat :'i. C·i,'l. o! t he ! 1.-.r:t '~h:i ;.·. n~~ ~1ret"t.Qr J~~ne;-~t (' f 

UNESCO had clecided to cane himself to submit h.!. a Organ·:.:.;; b.. on ! s clear 1 

OOilprehenlive, and well-arranged repor t in suoh an el oq-uent and tuoving Jtl[iimar . 

He confessed that, when reading Annex 41 he could not help !.eelL~~ agh&et 

at the many and varied tasks f or which t he Director-General had been made 

respmtible. But after hearing Mr. Torre1--Bodet, he had lost a l l his f eelings 

ot anxiety and scepticism, and was now convinced tha t the Directo~eneral would 

aucceastull7 carr,y out all the tasks which fell to him, 

The Director-Gener.\1 bad himselt said t hat peace was "at! \mending creation" 

and, therefore , the French delegation was happ;y t6not e that UNESCO had chosen 

the path of continuoos progress. It was significant that t he pres ent 

cliseuelion had begun at a time when, in a very grave 5Jlterna tional situation> 

UNESCO had ju1t presented the Council and world opinion with two "a cts" s namely 1 

the Brussels meeting ot experts to improve hi sto17 t extbooks ... which ''"u nne of 

the moat effective methods of cCJDbat1ng war ... and the publication ot a 

ecientitic report on the question ot race . Within a very f ew days that report 

had orea~~d a eensatioo throughout the world, eince it showed tha t the c~ception 

. . of race vae nothing tNt a zeyt,h devoid of all 1cienti!ic f oundation. 

In the UNESCO report, the . Director-9ener al bad eubnit.tect not . ool,J" the 

O:r.oganisation'e balance sheet, but also an account of i t s future prospects, wtdeh 

· should be examined. 't(ith due regard t .o the r esult s achieved ,l.nd t he wor l d 

. econcaic aituatioo. An emminatioo of the result s recorded in t he report and 

ot the decisions adopted a t the Fitth General Conf er ence r ecently heltl at 

Florence ehowe.d that, as the Director-General bad &O well express ed it1 UNF~CO 

had explored t he whole of the province ccmnit teti t o it • Over seval"a l Gener al 

CC:Illerences the .main points ot ita programme had remained unchangod• That 

comparative stabUit;yin· its activities had enabled it t o establish the basic 
l 

programme and annual programmes to ~ch th9 Director-General had r eferred. 



E/AC.24/SR.66 
page 16 

UNESCO had Ukewiee gained an awareness of the techniques and methods which 

it must apply 1n order to achieve effective results. Many examples were to be 

. found in the report, among them seminars, grants and missions of educational 

experts, There again, the experience acquired had seemed sufficiently varied 

and conclusive to enable, if not a codification, at least an inventory, of 

facilities to be produced, which had resulted in the adoption by the General 

~erence of a list of methods and facilities. 

~t that was far fran the whole of UNESCO's work in that !ield• The 

Uraanizatim had been obliged to prepare directivee oencerning relatione with 

the nClrl-govemmental organizations and had also worked out rules for the 

preparation and adoption of intemntional conventions and recommendations to 

Member States. The French delegation wished to stress its appreciation of 

the work done b,y UNESCO in the former connexion. Moreover, was it not the 

duty of that Organization, which aspired to become the conscience of the United 

Nations, to become conscious itself of the tasks which !e .~ to it and of the 

means by which they could be achieved? 

· UNESCO had alrea~ succeeded, to the best of its ability, in eoping with 

a large number of those tasks. The French delegation wi~hed to congratualte 
. . 

it on the results it had o~tained in the field of specialist collaborntion and 

exchangm of technical informatim, 

The 90licy to be folll::Med with regard to internatia'l8.1 organizations had 

preaented varirus problems: it had been found neceseaey to find. ways and means 

ot co-operating with existing orga.niutions, to introduce a measure of order 

into their chaos, and, where neceseary, to create new associations. In general, 

the policy ao far followed had met with success, and UNESCO had recently been 

able to. make uee of the experience thue acquired to formulate directives for 

ita re:;-.·?.tions with those organizations~ 

UNESCO had also successfully carried out another essenti.:~.l task - the 

collection and diatrirution of e.xtensi ve documentation in the fields of 

education, science and culture. 



E/ AC, 24/SR,66 
page 17 

Another function of UNESCO was to enlist the various types of 

intellectual activity in the service of international understanding, There, 

as the Director-Ceneral himself had honestly admitted, UNESCO had been less 

successfulo Something had been done, tn certain directions at least, such 

as instruction in the purposes and principles of the United Nations and 

dissemination of the Universal Declarati9n of Human Rights. But it wa s very 

little indeed co.red with what was required, particularly in the .t'i(:j:d of 

the social sciences. 

According to the Director-General, the chief obstacles were that the 

performance of such a function pre-supposed very considerable achievements in 

the two other fields he (Mr. Torres-Bodet) had mentioned, and that the relevant 

tachniques were leas well developed. The French delegation believed those 

factors to be very important. There was, however, another of no less importance; 

action of that kind in the service of international understanding called for 

the greatest exertions and the largest, most difficult contributions from 

Member States. fbose States must not only supply information and answer 

enquiries, but take positive steps, possibly entailing changes in their national 

legislation, their administrative customs and the doctrines inculcated in their 

schools. Such co-operation from Member States would do much to increase the 

effectiveness of UNESCO t s efforts. It was in that sphere, rather than in the 

field of finance, that the French delegation would wish UNESCO to ask Member 

States f or a greater measure of co-operation. 

Stabilization of UNESCO's budget appeared to be a feature of the present 

stage of the Organizationts development. The Director-General deplored that 

stabilization, and saw in it a cause of decay. But was it possible for 

large increases in the budget to continue? States ~Qre unlikely to agree to 

such increases simply as a result of having the work which UNESCO should do, 

and the means put at its disposal for actually doing it, laid before them for 

compar.~ son, since it was equally possible to compare national requirements in 

the fields of education, scienca and culture with the credits allocated to 

meet themo There was no doubt whatever, idealistically spea~, that the 



E/AC.24/SR.6h 
page 18 

financi3l r esources of UNESCO ought to be increased. On the practical eide, 

the French delegation would confine itself to mentioning that the States 

represented at Florence had undertaken to re-examine the question of the 

size of the UNESCO budget in 1951; but in view of the tact that the examination 

would be unable to provide UNESCO with additional· tund• for 1950 or even tor 

1951, the Organization had decided to take advantage ot a provision ot ite 

Constitution al lowing it to accept State or private tunds over and above ite 

normal budget for allocation to special projects, 

The Fr ench delegation had not accepted that procedure at Florence without 

making the most expres·a r eservations. Indeed, it considered that that procedure . 

enteiled a serious risk to the very existence o! UNESCO, So tar, the 

financing of the budget and, consequentl,y, ot the Organization's 1110rk b7 all 

Member ·States had shown, in respect of every undertaking, he~WeTer epeciallsed 

or localized, that universal solidarity which it was the purpose ot UNESCO to 

promote·. If a State or group or States oould henceforth provide tunds tor 

allocation to projects of special interest to it or them, was there not an 

obvious risk that UNESCO might be used b1 certain States tor purposes that 

were of more interest to those providing the tunda than to the' Organization 

itself? Moreover, the Director-General himself had foreseen that cmnger. 

~o:' !'Y"f'IV1111~nnAl ~hAY"~Cter which he attributed tO that method Ot finane~ 81\d 

the conditions with which he had surrounded it1 had done so.mething to alla7 

the French delegation's misgivings, 

He wished to emphasize that the increae in eredita voted b1 Member State• 

was only one method - not necessari11 the ~st important - ot making the 

necessary improvement in the collaboration o! those states with the UNESOO .· 
Secretari at. It was in the continuous review and improvement ot that 

collaboration in all ita aspects 1 not onl.7, or even principal.q 1 in a tiDanc1al 

tom, that the French delegation saw the INJ'est S':'Arantee tor the de.,..J,iar •t 
and effectiveness of the Organization. But collataoratioc Cll tha part ot 
certain States had fallen ott considerablJ, Poland had sent no .dele .. tion to 

norence; and Clzechoslovald.a and Hungaey had recalled their del.ept1Cil! att.r 



E/AC.24/SR,66 
page 19 

the General Conference had taken a decision, whieh they had found un3cceptable, 

on the representation of China. 

Against the satisfactory incr ease in the number of Member Stat es announced 

by the Director-General there must be set the disturbing manifestations wr~ch 

were endangering the efforts made by UNESCO to improve ita posHion as 

representative of the world community. If, rath&r than the n~~ber of St ates 

represented, the diversity of their economic and social systems wer e t aken .. ..... . 
: into account, it .was impossible to believe that UNESCO had approached any 

near er to its ideal of universality durL"lg t.he r ecent past, in spite of the 

recQnt : cceseion of Yugosl avia, in addit ion to other states. 'That was a fact 

which the Franch delegation wished to emphasize most stronglj·; it was of vital 

importance for the success of the work which UNESCO desired t o carry out, and 

must carry out, tor the peace of the world, 

Concern f or that work had characterized the reeent discussions of the 

deliberative bodies of UNESCO and the public speeches of its Director~eneral. 

In face of the special difficulties of th~ existing internationai situation, 

UNESCO, and ~specially its Director-General, were trying to bring the work 

into closer touch with present-day realities. 

The French delegation wished. to express to the Director-General of 

UNESCO its satisfaction at the work already accomplished, and to stat e that 

it considered his presence at the head of that Organization as a guarantee 

that i t would not fail in the particularly heavy task now incumbent on it. 

It affirmed that the French Government would continue, as in the past, to give 

the Organization and its Director~eneral all the material and moral support 

within its power. 

Mr, MURTDrnO (Brazil) said he would like first of all to join 

the French representative in thanking Mr, Torres Bodet for coming in per son to 

present the report of UNESCO. 

He had listened with the greatest attention to the Director-General ' s 

remarks, Apart !rom the Annexes, the report which the latter had just submitt ed 



E/AC.24/SR.66. 
page 20 • 

to the Committee was in fact simil3r to the report presented to the Fifth 

General Conf erence of UNESCOo The Brazilian Government had then enthusiastically 

appr oved the report through its Minister of Education, who had himself gone t o 

Fl orence to demonstr ate the Brazilian Government's interest in the work of 

UNESCO, Incidentally, that had been the first time that a Brazilian Minister, 

other than the Foreign Minister, had t aken part in the work of one of the 

United Nations specialized agencies, 

In the first place , the Brazilian delegation sharedthe Di rector-General's 

view.as t o the disequilibrium which had begun to become apparent between the 

r esponsib:!..lities of t.fem.ber St.Gt.e.!3 and the Secretariat r espectively. Without 

tho ef fective collaboration of Members, the efforts of UNESCO would be in vain. 

To promote better co- ordination, at national level, of the activities connected 

with the implementation of the UNESCO programme, the ~razilian Ministry of 

Education wa s at that moment studying the possibility of setting up a special 

organ t o work in conjunction with the Brazilian National Gultural Commission 

( 11Cornisao Nacional de Cultura"), which had been one of the first t o be set up. 

The Director-General had referred t~ a campaign to be undertaken by UNESCO 

to combat racial prejudice, taking as its starting point the statement on 
ft ,...,, ., ,4+-'"' ,...-/' .,.. '0 ,... ,... ~ .... -o "·"""' ,......., h .. ,. o.,...C..,.o ..... +. e"''"'"1 o Me ~\o- ,.,. 1:'-- --\.. - --- - --.a. - .&...1--- \... -...l 
-~---J -- .., ___ -- - ...... -r - tl --.. -··- --··----• •••- •• - •o&v•• •"""'J:'•vwv••..,..,....,.,.g &&QY 

rightly pointed out the importance ~f and nec~ssity for that campaign 0 

In that spher e , Brazil could undoubtedly make a significant contribution. 

Although the population of Brazil consisted of three races ef different origin, 

Brazil had succeeded in eliminating practically all race _prejudice 0 Hence 

the Brazilian Government had wa~ welcomed the resolution of the Fifth General 

Conference authorising the Director-General to institute a sample enquiry in 

Brazil on contacts between races or ethnic groups, with a view to ~etermining 

the economic, political, cultural and psychological factors favourable or 
' . . . 

unfavourable to good relations between a_ueh race1 or ethnic groupe. In that . . 
r espect , he assured the Director-General that UNESCO could count on whole-

hearted ce>-operation- fran the Brazilian Government ·in carrying t.~.rough that 

enterprise a 



E/ AC ~ 24/ SR.o 66 
page 21 

Turning to the fit;ancial problem, he wished to emphasize two particulo.r 

uspects: first of a ll; the decision re:J.ched at Flore!lce under Resol ution 311, 

!:>y which exp'enditure for 1950 would be so controlled tlut total expenditure 

Oid !lot exceed incomee Although that measure had been taken at the eame time 

aa the decision to utilize financial resour ces other ~han regulo.r fuads - a 

decision which some people might be inclined to question -· it wos nevertheless 

praisewor thy, It showed a fi rm r esolve not to run up a deficit 1 and to deal 

with the finances of tho Organization in <1 t hor oughly r e.:J.listic spi::-ito 

Secondly, he wished to express the satisfaction of his Government with the 

plan submitted by the Director...{;eneral to the Florence Conf erence on arrangements 

for payrne11t of contributions by Member States~ That proposal, by which all 

Members would pay part of their contribution in hard currency and t he rest in 

non~·converti0l.e currencies, had unfortunately not been Ztccept eci by Member St ates. 

In that ccn.t1ection , he ventured t o draw the Committee t s attention to paragr :lphs 

35 and 36 of the seventh report t o the Cmmcil of the Ad.uir.i strative Committ ee 

on Co-ordination (E/1682)G He had not wish~d t o comment on it before hea ring 

what expla.nations the Director...{;enerdl might have had to niD.ke o 

Mro de PLBA (Mexico) said that the atmosphe~e of solemnity 

prevailing L"l the meeting was of supreme value and signi.ficance; for i t 

demonstrated complete confidence in t he labours of Ut-IESCO and constituted a 

r ecogr.ition of the efforts of its Diractor-General. I t also f elt that the 

presence of the President of the CouncilJ the leader s of delegations and the 

strong represent.:J.tion of the speciuli~ed agenci~s deserved t o be r ecognized a s 

showing that the efforts of UNESCO were appreci.:lted, and that a).l present 

believed in that Organization and its work0 

The Committee had listened with the greatest int erest t o the statement of 

the Director-Generalo As the representative of France h3d observed, all had 

been very much concerned at the heavy rcspor.sibiJ.ities assigned to the 

Director~General, as set out in Annex 4 of the Report, and not ~rbg but the 

deepest admiration could be felt f or the· faith and perseverance w1th which t hose 



E/AC.24/SR. 6f) 
page 22 

charged with the impl ementation of the Organization's programmes wer e fa cing 

their t ask} despi te prevai ling difficulties, and so bearing out the hope that 

had been pl aced i~ the Or ganiza tion. 

UNESCO had been born with the best wishes of the whole world to carry out 

work on behalf of the co~non man, and during the years of its existence its 

greatest achievement h~d been w~t it had a ccomplished for the common man and 

for t he rn3 Sse s~ One great quality of the Organization was that while it 

pursued the highest of ideals, it also reflect~d popular ideals . The f aith 

shown in UNESCO must be a gre~t source of encouragement t o those who worked for 

it. 

The ~rge number of projects and proposals with which the Organization w~s 

flooded from all sources l ent a sense of r eality to th~ work of the Organization, 

~nd h~d mude it vita lly necessary for the Director~enoral to be clearly aware of 

the Org~nization's objectives and t o keep them well in view. From what the 

Director~eneral had said of systematizing progr.llnmes and establishing priorities, 

i t was obvious that he WJ S aw~re of his r esponsibilities and that the Organization 

would be able to carry through its complicat ed progr~mmos S)tisfactorily. 

He then turned to certain projects on wnich UNESCO laid considerab~ 

emphasis, such as those of fundamental education ~d the relat ed pil ot projects 

which wer e being actively devel oped in Mexico, and stressed the need f or the 

vigorous stimul ation of a r t and scientific investigation. 

The Director-General had laid considerable emphasis on the National 

Commissions, of which ther e wa s a large network covering the cultural map of 

the world; they played an important part in the devel opment of the general 

progr~~e by enabling countries to contribute effectively t o that work. UNESCO 

could._only fulfil ex-pectations and meet the needs of the times it it were 

From among the numerous and inter-rel~ted problems with which the 

Organization had to deal, he singled out for speci3l mention the question of 

the el~boration of an internation~l convention on copyright. That subject had 

been consicter ed by many confer ences of different kinds at different times, but 



E/AC.24/SR,66 
page <3 

so fa.r no convention had eme.rged. It was therefore gratifying that UNESCO 

was t o undertake the task, and he was eure that it would bring order int o the 

existing disorder on the eubject. 

With reference to the question of limiting the budget1 which had baen 

referred to by the Director-General, he could not see how UNESCO could pcesibly 

devel op the uae of visual media, radio etc. without the assistance that might 

become 3vailable from private organizations. UNESCO was to be congratulated 

on the manner in which it endeavoured to make known the Universal Declaration 

on Human Rights to intellectual• and the masses alike throughout the l«>rld. 

Its activities in that respect brought the. Declaration t o life. The whole 

proo~ae was inevitably a dow one, and ~he world must patiently wait and hope 

for the day when, b.Y the efforts of the specialized agencies, all the high 

objectives enunciated in ' the United Nations Charter, on which the Declaration 

was based, would be achieved. 

The f our agencies to 'Which the Director-General he.d made particular 

reference, the International Labour Organisation, the Food and Agriculture 

Organization, the World Health Organization and UNESCO, were the four pillara 

on which the international movement of the day rested, They represented the 

faith and hope of mankind in t?e international organization of the present era, 

and it was essential that every step possible should be taken to bring them 

into closer touch with reality. He endorsed the Director-Generalis view that 

when considering those agencies breadth of vision was necessary 1n order not 

to tall victim t o the fears engendered by prevailing circumstances. He could 

but hope that they would continue t o work toge\'ti.1e·, and eo f onn a eolid 

toundation f or the peace of the world. 

Mr. KOTSCHNIG (United States of America) said that UNESCO had the 

whole-hearted support of the Government and people of his countr,r. It had to 

an unprecedented extent caught the imaginati on or the American people, because 

ite aime and objectivea1 as outlined in Article 1 of ite Constitution, embodied 

the deep~st aspirations of .the freedo~loving peoples of the world. The scope 

ot the Organi~ation, however, and the complexitr of ita atm. made their 



E/AC,24/SR.66 
page 24 

attainment extremel.Jr difficult. At an earlier stage in UNESCO's history, 

project had followed upon project, and some remnant of that spirit still survived; 

f or, at the General Converence in Flor ence, ~s many as 200 new projects h3d 

been proposed. Aa a result of its manifold activities, t oo, there had been 

an extraordinary growth of non-governmental and semi-governmental organizations, 

supported and t o some degree tinanced by UNESCO. Such a proliferation of 

organizations did not help the attainment or its purposes. 

Seen ~gainst such a background, the most strild.ng characteristic of the 

Organization's r eport was the great progress made in concentrating programmes1 

Largely because of the efforts of its Directo~~eral, UNESCO .was moving 

towards the establ1shment1 not only of priorities, but of the integration ot 
its ma jor progriumnEBin terms of the essential purposes of the Organization, 

which were t he promotion of peace and security. Hie delegation had submitted 

a draft resolution (E/AC . 24/L.l5) 1 which easentially spoke f or itself. It was 

designed t o assist the Direct or-General and those who shared his vision to make 

UNESCO a more effective instrument for achieving its central purposes. The 

eeoond paragraph placed on record the United States delegation's appreci ation 

of the leadership .of the Director-General. The third paragraph made an appeal 

t o members of UNESCO bo seek greater concentration of future programmes; for 

mucn or ~ne early prol.i.ferat1on o~ programnes and activities had been one, not 

so much t o the Secretariat of UNESCO as t o governments thamselves1 which had 

proposed an endless suocession of projecte. The fourth parag~aph specified 

one way in which greater. concentration could be achieved. I t did not mean 

that UNESCO should not hold expert meetings and conferences; i f there were 

!ewer, however• more time would be availabl~ to governments, experts and the 

Secretariat to prepare . properly t or thGl<le In aey case, their number shou.ld 

depend on the programme; the more condensed the programme, the !eW9r the 

number of meetings. 

The fifth paragraph in his draft r esolution emphasized certain major 

a spects ot the work of UNESCO . 1n that connection, he would suggest thnt the 

words ''continued t o11 be inserted before the words 11g:i.ve special attention" 1 ae 



E/AC. 24/SR.66 
page 25 

such a modification expressed more accurately his delegation ' s meaning. The 

paragraph was in accordance with the Director-General's reference in his speech 

to a new classification of the major objects of the t a sks befor e UNESCO, stated 

"in ascending or der of compl exity and importance". The first category included 

the ef for ts 11 to organize co-operation between specialists for t he collation 

and dissemination of knowledge and researchu. That was a field in which 

UNESCO had done a great deal. Some felt that it had perhaps devoted a 

. dispropor tionate amount of efforts and funds to that end. He therefore 

appreciated all the more t he Director-General's own emphasis on the second and 

third categorie s of progr wmmes. The second cat egory i ncluded the promotion 

of the utilization of ·knowl edge and resear ch for the improvement of living 

standards and the enhancement of human dignity. Such an object ir.tplied an 

expansion of education, with special attention to under-developed countries . 

I f the draft resolution wer e adopted, it would supersede Council resolution 

251 (IX) . In that r esolution, the term "war-devastated countries" had been 

used1 but that t erm no longer held the meaning it had had same years before, 

for gr eat programmes of development had re~stablished educational i nstitutions 

in most of the war-devastat ed countr ies. No comparable develoJEent of 

educational . instituti~ns had taken place in the under-developed countries , and 

his delegation considered that f or tho future the maj or emphasis shoul d be on 

those r egions, The fifth paragraph also emphasized as an issue of the 

highest priori ty "the promotion of effective methods of t each.ir .. g i:.'1ternat ionaJ. 

understandi ng" . That corresponded to the third and most comp1,~x and impor+,;;J..nt 

o~ tho Director-GeneralIs eategories1 namely, t he effort "to enlist aLl.. forms 

of intellectual activit;y for the strengthening of intcrnation2l undez-standing11
• 

He would h~ve liked to speak on tho subject of r esear ch ].a.b\)ratorius ~ ttnd 

on t eaching p.1rposes and principles, but bo~ thoee subj ects '<muld l!orue up for 

discussion under separate i tems of the agenda, and he would refrain from 

touching upon them at the present moment. In both ca5es 1 howe,r~r> UNESCO WM 

clearl;y the internati onal agency most concerned. 

In· UNESCO's report there had been eevernl r ef erences to the .r~eed. for 

further studies of the problem of . the arid zone, and at the Fifth Gener al 



E/ACo24/SR.66 
pnge 26 

Confer ence a re~~lution had been passed rel ating to the International ~rid 

Zone Resear ch Council. He wand~rcd whether such a Council actual~y ex.i s t c:d. 

If i t did not, the form of .the resolut ion was misleading. The gon~ral probl~m 

of the ~rid zone , involving a• it did huge populations, was in many ways the 

probl em of under- developed countries, and \olhile, as UNESCO had eaid1 it 

needed special attention, it was of great importance and cut across so many 

issues t hat i t was a mistakL to ontrust it to yet another council. Rather, 

tho1•ef or c, than penrdt a snall seal ~; enterprise, the Economic u.nd Social 

Council should ask t he Secretary-Genuro.l to make a co-ordinat C;d ef fort in a 

field which co- i many specialized agencies. '!'he question was of such 

1Inpor tance th~t together with tho Indian delegati on, his del egation had 

prepar ed a draft r esolution on it (E/ AC.24/L.l6) for th~ COMmittc0 's consider ation. 

That r esolution r equest ed the Se~ratary-General 1 in consultation with th~ 

inter ested specialized agenci es and other appropri at e i nter-governmental and 

non-governmental bodies, to submit to t he twelfth session of the Council a 

r eport on the activities of those agencies and bodi es in connexion with the 

·.conomic anc , Jcial problems of the ~rid zones, and recommend~tione for the 

co-ordination of such activitio~ under the guidance of the Economic ~d Social 

Council. He hoped that, in accordance with tho l ast par~graph of the draf~ 

r esolution1 UNESCO would in · the meantime go slow in proceeding ~th t-he 

implementation of its r esolution in support of the establishment of an 

. International Arid Zone Research Council. 

In conclusion, he hoped that with the help of governments UN~CO would 

become more and more effective in l aying down the intellectual and mornl baees upoo 

_ w-hich an enduring peace could be built • 

. Hr9 SCHNAKE- VERGARA {Chile ) sai'd that, although hi8 country W1lS not 

a member of UNESCO, he f elt entitled to make some general comments, bec3UBe it 

wae a member and wholehearted supporter of the United N~Ltions 1 and because the 

Direc tor-General of UNESCO was, to some extent, tht: embodiment of Latin 

American thoughto 



Eji,C . 24/SH. 66 
pc.ge 27 

He congr~tulated ill!ESCO and the Director-Gen~rnl for their bXcellent work 

in concentr~ting th~ir progr~es. Th6 subject c f concentr:..tion h::1d engaged 

the ntt~ntion of the Gcner1l Assembly ~~d of succ essive sessions of the Council, 

~nd UNESCO was the mor e to be congratulat ed on whnt h~d been done in view of 

the difficulties with which it h~d been fac ed, :Jnd in particul~r on the very 

important step it had t aken at Florence in fixing an ordC;r of priorities, of 

which the objec t w~s not to limit its ac tivities, but to make t he work more 

effective. The main obstacles in the way of ~ full progrJJJUne of UNESCO were 

a t present, .').nd perhaps Hould be in the future , l (!ck of r esources and l ack of 

experts in nll fi.e lds of knowledge , Only a concentration of progr~es would 

cn.:.blE- UN:~sco t o o::•t!lin t:: ffecti ve results in sucr1 circumst:1nces CUld thereby 

strengthen its st~nding with worl d opinion. 

The t a sks of illlESCO were immense . In gr&at parts of the world there 

was a hunger, not only for m.:~teriJ.l well- being, but ,'llso for things of the 

mind and spirit. In the r ecent past the destruction of great parts of the 

material world had been accomp3.liied by grea t dam.:1g0 to the spiritual foundations 

of mankind. The impact of the wer on the moral side of international li fe had 

been tremendous, The great task in front of UNLSCO was the r econstruc t ion ~f 

those spiritual foundations, and UNESCO was clearly the chief means by which 

such r (:construction would be achieved. Economic problc:ms were l egion, and many 

projec ts had been evolved to solve them, but it was equally important to 

incul cate throughout the world the basic principles of the Charter and of the 

Universal Declaration of Human Rights . It w~s impossible to over - emphasize 
-

the importance of th~t basic work, and it seemed t o him that the only solution 

was that UNESCO should be given all the financial assistance it r equired to 

carry out such r e- education. In particula r , the spiritual requircm~uts of the 

inhabitants of under~eveloped countrie s should b0 borne in mind. 

The greatest contribution UNESCO could make to the peace of the world 

would be to achieve its fundament~l objectives. Vfuut was needed, what was 

indeed essential, was to rebuild man 's spiritual foundations, in the knowledge 

tha t economic and spiritu~l progress could only be achieved through inculcation 



E/AC.24/SR. 66 
page 28 

of the fund<ll'!lental. rights laid down in the Universal Declaration of Human 

Rights. Without such foundations, there could be no st~bility in life, no 

fr eedom and no true intcrn3tional democracy. 

Mr. DELHAYE ( Belgium) stated that his delegation had read with great 

inter est UNESCO 's r eport for the year 1949-1950, as well ae the supplementary 

r eport ari sing out of the Fifth General Confer ence, both of which had been 

submitted to the Council by the Director-General. 

The former report was clear and concise - he would even like to say in 

passing that he thought it almost too condensed. The r eply would no doubt 

be that t hose notes had been deliberately summarized, especially with regard 

to certain t echnical points, and that various other UNESCO documents could be 

consulted if mor e precise and more det ailed information were required. 

Nevertheless, he would like to know the views of the Director-General, and 

possibly the other members of the Counci~ on that point. 

He then r ef erred to the important question of the Organization's programme. 

In the introduction to his r eport for the year 1949-50, the Director-General 

had stated that "it is clearly detr imental to the Organization's efficiency that 

its personnel and financial r esources should be spread so thinly over the tasks 

l aid upon it, that little or no s1gm.n.cant progress can oe macie w.ii.i-1 lKJill~ ..:,; 

them". It was therefore urgently necessary to plan concentration of effort and 

t o establish a system of priority for the tasks to be accomplished. The 

Fifth General Confer ence appear ed t o have t~en an important step in that 

direction, and the supplementary r eport (E/1688/Add.l) contained the text of 

a very c~ear r esolution which had been a dopted unanimously. 

For its part, his del egation was happy to express its satisfactinn in 

that connection. The dangers into which UNESCO could fall were not purely 

illusory, since the Direc":or-General himself had written that "an activity 

carried on at a slow tem~ is likely before long to lose its sharp edges and 

sooner or. later its significance". Happily, Wlder the force.t'ul direction of 

Mr. Torres-Bodet, to whom the Belgian delegation wished to ~ hnndsome tribute~ 

UNESCO had calculated t he risks in good time 1 and its vitality, assisted by more 

concentrated methods of work employed more judiciously, would give better results. 



E/AC.24/SR.66 
page 29 

Among the most recent achievements, he wished to point in particular to 

the World Conference on the Conservation of Natural Res9urces1 an important 

statement on the racial problem, a seminar organised at the University of 

Brussels devoted to the r evision of school textbooks and history books in 

particular, and UNESCO participation in the technical assistan· - ~ogramme. 

The l atter question was of particula r interest to the Belgi~ delegation, since 

the technical assistance programme would , to all appearances , be one of the 

great constructive achievements of the United Nations. All who, like the 

Belgian delegation, had the growing development of UNESCO at h~art, would 

welcome the part it ~.s called upon t o ' l ay in that field, which would increase 
I 

its resourceso Although the Dir ector -General had pointed out that such 

incre<>.se would be only temporary, it would none t he l ess be quite appreciable . 

The Fifth General Conference of mrESCO had devoted much ~ttention to the 

Organization r s participation in the expanded progre..mme of technical assist::1nce 1 

and in a r esoJ.ution had requested the Secretary-General of the United Nations 

to submit for i ts sixth session a r eport on that participationo It would al so 

be advisable to retain the invitation to "Member States and t heir Nationcl 

Commissions to assist the Secretariat by providing informat i on 'on availabl e 

technical per sonnel and in parti cular in obtaining the services of persons 

specially qualified to carry out the t asks r equir ed within the approved 

Technical Assistance project." 

On the initiative of the Belgi<>.n delegation, the Fifth General Conference 

had adopted a resolution authorising t he Director-Gener~l t o consider the 

employment of refugee intellectuals. In practice, that rno~t including some of 

those intellectuals on the lists of experts to be enployed under the technical 

~ssistance programme. In that connection, he emphasised t ha t his delegation 

wished to see something done to assist that class of emigrant . 

It would also like to know whether the UNESCO Secr etari3t was yet in a 

position to supply prel~inary information regarding the measures t aken in 

pursuance of the above•tnentioned resolutio~e . He t ook tha t opportunity of 

assu~ing UNESCO t hat it could rel7 on his Government to co-opera t e by supplying 

the nece~sary documentation and by pa~icipating in the impleQent ation of t he 

measures decided upon. 



E/AC.24/SR.b!J 
page 30 

Before leaving the question of technical assistance, he wished to point out 

t hat his delegation shared the views expressed in the penultimate paragraph of 

the draft resolution submitted by the United States del egation (E/AC .24/L.l5) , 

In his r eport to the Fifth General Conference, the Director-General had 

summarised the work accomplished and the progress made with a view to the 

conclusion of international agreements on the import of educational, . scientific 

and cultural mat erial. As stated in document E/1688/Add,l, the Fifth General 

Confor ehce had approved a draft agreement for submission to governments. The 

Belgian authorities would examine that draft with the greatest care, and they 

hoped that other Member States would give the same attention to a proposal whose 

adoption would go a l ong way towards r emoving existing obstacles to the free 

dissemination of ideas. 

Similarly, Belgium appreci ated and encouraged the efforts made by UNESCO to 

prot ec t nuthors' rights, end the Belgian del egation warmly supported the r emarks 

of the .He.rican !'eprcsentative on . that subje<"t. 

He wished to congratulate t he Director-General on the progress made in the 

presentation of the UNESCO progrrunme and budget. The documents were clearer and 

fewer ·in number, .Nevertheless, the Belgian delegation considered that the 

administrative costs wor e still very high; it sincerely hoped that efforts would 

be made to reduce the pr oportion of tho whole budg~t represented by those costs, 

so that funds for field work could be incrensed, 

\vi thout wishing to r evert·. to everything thc:lt had bcm said by the Belgian 

~epresentative during the discussion on item .3.3 of the agenda (Teaching of the 

purposes and principles, tho structure and activities of tJle United Nations and 

the Specialized Agencies) he must r epeat that in the present circumstances it was 

more than ever necessnry to reach as many people as possible, particularly· young 

people; for, a.e had been rightly pointed out, international co~peration began 

w1 th youth. The Belgian · delegation was certainly not unaware of the difficulty 

of such o.n undertaking. Disillusionment and scepticism were not the l east of 

the obstacles, b4t his de~cgation was convinced that all most perseve!Bin a task 

which, it was to be hoped, might bear frui.t_ before further trials overtook the 

world. 

!he meeting rose at 1 p.m. 




